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McCAIN LAW, P.C. Attorney for Plaintiffs
Zakia E. Moore, Esquire (86424)
I. Edward McCain III, Esquire (85419) i A119

1515 Market Street, Suite 1200
Philadelphia, PA 19102

(215) 236-1086
zmoore(@mccain-law.com
jmccain{@meccain-law.com

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE EASTERN
DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

FRANK HIGHTOWER : Civil Action No.
867 DeKalb Avenue, Apt 3C :
Brooklyn, NY 11221

On behalf of himself and all other
similarly situated persons

Pilaintiffs, : CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
VS, :
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.
3400 Chichester Avenue

Boothwyn, PA 19061
Defendant.
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CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of ail other similarly situated persons, by way of

Complaint against Defendant, aver as follows:
NATURE OF THE CASE
L. This is an employment discrimination class action Complaint brought to obtain
declaratory, injunctive and monetary relief on behalf of a class of employees of defendant
for violations of, inter alia, the Civil Rights Act of 1866, 42 U.S.C. §1981, as amiended by
the Civil Rights Act of 1991 (“Section 1981); Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
and 1991; 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, et seq. (Title VII}); the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, 43
P.S. § 951, et seq. (PHRA) and Pennsylvania common law as well as other rights,
obligations, privileges and benefits owed to the class by Defendant. Plaintiffs allege that
defendant Wells Fargo has engaged in, and continues to engage in, a company-wide pattern
and practice of employment discrimination, both intentional and systemic, on the basis of
race and retaliation against him and a class of similarly situated Black/African Americans
employees and former employees. Wells Fargo’s discriminatory practices include, but are
not limited to, discrimination in recruitment, hiring, promotion, transfer, job assignment, and
compensation, on a classwide basis as alleged in tbis Complaint. Plaintiffs seek declaratory,
injunctive, and equitable monetary relief from these practices; compensatory and punitive
damages; equitable remedies of accounting, restitution and disgorgement; and an award of
costs, expenses, and attorney’s fees; all for himself individually and on behalf of the class he
seeks to represent.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. Jurisdiction. This Court has original jurisdiction of plaintiffs’ Section 1981
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claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§1331 and 1343(a)(4). The Court has original jurisdiction
of Plaintiff’s Title VII claims pursuant to those two provisions as well as 42 U.S.C.
§2000e-5()(3). The court has jurisdiction over the claims asserted in this action pursuant
to 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d), the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005 and 28 U.S.C. § 1367,
supplemental jurisdiction over state law claims under the Pennsylvania Human Relations
Act, 43 P.S. § 951, et seq. (PHRA).
3. Venue. Venue herein is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b)(2) and 42
U.S.C. §2000-5(f)(3). Defendant maintains facilities and business operations in this District,
employed Plaintiff in this District and committed some of the discriminatory acts alleged
herein in this District.

PARTIES
4, Frank Hightower (“Plaintiff”’), a New York resident, is a Black/African-American
male former employee of Defendant. He was employed as a Store Manager in Chichester,
PA and in Atlanta, GA from September 2012 through September 2, 2016.
5. At the time Plaintift was hired as a Store Manager in Chichester, there were no
African-American managers in his district or area.
6. Defendant Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“Wells Fargo” or “Defendant™) is an American
international banking and financial services institution headquartered in San Francisco, CA.
7. Wells Fargo is the third largest banking institution in the United States by total assets
of $1,930 trillion. It has over 260,000 full-time employees and approximately 8,700 retail
branches.
8. Retail branches typically include a manager, bank tellers, customer service

representatives and personal bankers.
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9. Defendant operates a nationwide business plan that is established at its headquarters
in San Francisco, CA and similarly implemented in each of its human resources and
recruiting departments and retail branches in the United States, which plan includes hiring,
recruiting, employee compensation and promotion.

10.  Defendant has developed and continually reinforces a centralized corporate culture
that is implemented at each of its retail banking branches and human resources and
recruiting departments throughout the country. Defendant regularly moves upper level
managers from one branch and region to another, and often from one state to another. This
practice is done in part to ensure that a uniform Wells Fargo culture operates consistently
throughout all of its retail banking branches. Within this structure also exists a company-
wide discriminatory culture.

FACTS RELATING TO THE PATTERN OF INTENTIONAL AND SYSTEMIC
DISCRIMINATION BY DEFENDANT WELLS FARGO

11.  Defendant’s employment practices and systems discriminate against Black/African
American employees because of their race in the retail banking division. The discriminatory
practices engaged in by Wells Fargo’s retail banking division are intentional and systemic in
nature, and adversely affect plaintiffs and members of the class with respect to opportunities
for hiring, promotion, transfer, job assignment, compensation, and other terms and
conditions of employment, as specifically summarized below.

12.  Defendant maintains a diversity scorecard which it uses to control hiring
demographics via a quota system.

13.  Within this quota system exists a fixed set of diversity hiring requirements based
solely on numbers and percentages. However, compensation levels and retention of the hires

based on this mandate fall far below those of their similarly-situated counterparts.
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A. Discriminatory retaliation

14.  Plaintiff started working with Defendant on or about September 2012 as a Personal
Banker. By April 2014, as part of Defendant’s plan to increase diversity among its store
managers, Plaintiff was promoted to Store Manager. At the time Plaintiff was promoted to
store manager there were no Black/African-American store managers.

15. On or about July 1, 2014 Plaintiff informed Defendant’s human resources
department thét Raymond Disandro (Caucasian),. a District Manager, was treating another
employee, Mark Bacon (Caucasian), more favorably than a similarly-situated Black/African-
American employee, specifically in relation to monetary raises.

16.  Immediately following this report, Plaintiff began to experience a series of
retaliatory events by Disandro, which ultimately resulted in his termination.

17.  The retaliatory actions were in the form of continued harassment, static salary, six
(6) disciplinary write-ups, despite excellent performance, and other unsubstantiated attempts
at discipline and corrective action. Disandro’s behavior in this regard left an indelible impact
on Plaintiff’s employee file creating a discriminatory basis for his eventual termination.

18.  On or about September 2015, during a store manager’s meeting, Bacon asked
Plaintiff, Sara S. (last name unknown) (Indian-American) and Kevin Hawkins
(Black/African-American) “Can I talk to the minorities?” Plaintiff complained to human
resources regarding this comment.

19.  Upon information and belief, no investigation or corrective action by Defendant
occurred because approximately one month later, Bacon made another similar racially-
offensive joke to Plaintiff. After this second offense, Plaintiff complained again to human

resources about Bacon’s remarks and inquired why the initial comment was not investigated.
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20.  Disandro would also instruct Plaintiff on which candidates to hire according to the
diversity scorecard, but he did not provide the same compensation benefits to diverse hires
as similarly-situated non-diverse employees.

21.  On or about November 2015, Plaintiff was on a telephone call with Tammarah
Rhodes, an employee relations representative. During this call, Plaintiff complained of
Disandro’s continued discriminatory and retaliatory conduct. Upon leaming of this
conversation, Disandro attempted to confiscate Plaintiff’s work keys and terminate him in
front of the entire branch staff. Plaintiff contacted the Area Manager, Robin Choi, who
advised that he was not terminated and apologized for Disandro’s behavior.

22, During the time Disandro was harassing Plaintiff and attempting to terminate him in
the fall of 2015, Plaintiff applied for numerous transfer/promotions opportunities within the
company in the Philadelphia and surrounding areas but was rejected each and every time.
23.  Upon information and belief, Disandro’s baseless corrective actions and Plaintiff’s
discrimination complaints, caused Plaintiff’s employment file to be “flagged” within his
region preventing any transfer or promotional opportunities. This occurred despite the fact
that in 2015 Plaintiff received numerous awards for performance. Additionally, despite his
performance, he was still the lowest paid Store Manager in his region. In fact, the Regional
President personally recognized Plaintiff’s hard work and efforts as well as acknowledging
his difficulties in securing a transfer and/or promotion.

24, Suspecting that he was indeed being “flagged™ within his region, Plaintiff applied for
manager opportunities outside of the region. Immediately upon applying for a Store
Manager position in Atlanta, Georgia, he was offered the position. Thus, on or about April

2016, Plaintiff was approved for lateral transfer to a Wells Fargo branch on Austell Road in
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Atlanta, Georgia. Plaintiff suffered a pay cut to take the position in Atlanta.

25. .0n or about July 28, 2016 Plaintiff was served a corrective action/final warning
regarding his “leadership style and communication style.”

26.  He received this discipline after receiving a Coaching Excellence award earlier the
same year.

27.  Plaintiff was advised that he was required to undergo trainings, work on his
professionalism, refrain from placing any of his subordinate employees under corrective
action and he was told he could not hire any additional employees. The trainings were to be
completed by August 31, 2016 and the restrictions on managing his employees were in also
in place until August 31, 2016.

28.  Plaintiff filed a rebuttal disputing the allegations listed in the corrective action. In his
rebuttal he specifically states that he believed that the District Manager, Gregory Ganow,
was trying to find reasons to fire him. For example, after the corrective action was issued,
Ganow instructed Plaintiff to interview an internal candidate for a customer service
representative position. Afterwards, Ganow came to Plaintiff’s branch and verbally
chastised him for interviewing even though he was interviewing the candidate specifically at
Ganow’s request. This interview incident was also cited as a reason for his eventual
termination.

29.  After the interview incident, Plaintiff contacted Jenny Kent in the human resources
department and advised her of this situation and other conflicting issues listed in his Final
Warning, i.e. being responsible for trainings that were not available until 2017 although he
was required to complete them by August 31, 2016.

30.  Onor about September 2, 2016, Ganow advised Plaintiff that he was being
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terminated for failing to complete the corrective action listed on his Final Warning.

31. Upon information and belief, Area President in the Atlanta, Georgia, Jim Lawrence,
knew Greg Reading, the Area President from the area where Plaintiff worked in
Pennsylvania. It is believed and therefore alleged, that they discussed Plaintiff and his past
discrimination complaints.

32.  Plaintiff questioned Ganow as to why his first corrective action in Georgia was a
Final Warning. Ganow told him that it was based on “the other stuff that happened in
Philly.”

33.  This comment creates a direct causal connection between the discriminatory
retaliation Plaintiff suffered from Disandro and Plaintiff’s termination.

34.  Upon information and belict, Plaintiff and other similarly-situated employees were
retaliated against for engaging in protected activity by reporting and/or complaining of
activity which they reasonably believed was illegal.

35.  In fact, according a CNN Money.com article published on January 23, 2017, Wells
Fargo admitted to finding evidence of retaliation against employees who filed reports using
the company’s ethics hotline. Needless to say, Plaintiff is not alone in his retaliation
complaints.

B. Discriminatory compensation and promotion practices

36.  During his time working for Defendant, Plaintiff noticed that Black/African-
American employees were promoted less and paid less than their non-Black/African-
American counterparts.

37.  Plaintiff’s starting salary as a Store Manager in Chichester was $48,000. At that

time, all stores were paid based on the level of the store, i.e. Level 1, 2 or 3. Chichester was
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a branch Level 2 because it was the largest in his district. There was a low, mid and high
salary scale. After speaking with other managers, there were Level 1 store managers, all
non- Black/African-American, whom were paid more than Plaintiff,

38.  Eventually, Plaintiff’s base salary increased to $54,000, but even by then it should
have been approximately $74,000, which would have been a mid-point.

39.  Aaron Armrington (Black/African-American) was a Personal Banker 1 and never
received a raise over the course of three (3) years with Defendant although he had a high
performance rating. When Aaron presented a job offer letter to management from a
competitor bank, management declined to match the salary offered in the letter and
Arrington left Defendant’s employ. Arrington was Plaintiff’s direct report.

40.  However, when Mike Sumerski (Caucasian) presented an offer letter from a
competitor bank, he was offered an $8,000 salar}r increase to reject the job offer and remain
employed with Defendant. Sumerski had been working with Defendant for less than one (1)
year and was performing poorly. Sumerski was also Plaintiff’s direct report.

41.  Rasheedah Hatchett, a Personal Banker 2 for approximately five (5) years at the time
of Plaintiff’s employment, was Plaintiff’s direct report. Hatchett had certain professional
licenses and constantly requested salary increases that were denied despite her licenses and
high performance. Plaintiff knows of similarly-situated Caucasian Personal Banker 2’s with
less credentials bu;[ were paid at a higher rate. Upon information and belief, Hatchett
remains employed with Defendant.

42,  Upon information and belief, Plaintiff, Arrington and Hatchett, as well as other-
similarly situated employees, were discriminated in salary and promotional opportunities

based on race.
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43,  Based upon the foregoing facts, Plaintiff filed a Charge of Discrimination with the
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) dated November 17, 2016. On or
about June 22, 2017 the EEOC issued a Notice of Right to Sue. The Charge and Notice are
attached as Exhibit 1.
44,  The class consists of Black/African-American retail banking employees. This action
challenges both the promotion opportunity and salary advancement of these employees. This
action also challenges the company’s response to employees who engaged in protected
activity and the adverse employment actions that follow thereafter.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
45.  Plaintiff brings his claims under Section 1981, Title VII and the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Act as a class action pursuant to Rule 23(b}2) and 23(b)(3) of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure, and Pennsylvania Rules of Civil Procedure 1701, et seq. on behalf
of himself and all others siniilarly-situated, as more specifically described below.
46. Plaintiff seeks to represent a class, of which he is a member, consisting of: a.
Black/African-American retail banking employees who were denied promotions, transfers
and/or salary increases during the limitations period; b. all Wells Fargo retail banking
employees who suffered adverse employment actions after engaging in protected activity
during the limitations period, i.¢. reporting activity to human resources or the ethics line they
reasonably belicved to be illegal.
47.  The plaintiff as class representative as defined above, meets each of the requirements
of Rule 23(a), 23(b)(2), and 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure for certification

of this case as a class action, and Pennsylvania Rules of Civil Procedure 1701, et seq. for the

reasons stated below.
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48.  Rule 23(a)(1) -- Numerosity. The exact number of members of the class is not known
at present, and will be determined through discovery. It is estimated that there are hundreds
or thousands of Black/African Americans who are class members. In addition, the class
members are spread throughout the regions and states of the couniry, and are located in
dozens of separate retail stores as employees. The class is therefore so numerous and so
situated that individual joinder of class members is impracticable.

49.  Rule 23(a)(2) -- Commonality. There are numerous common questions of fact and
law in this action that relate to and affect the claims of relief sought by the class, as well as
the anticipated defenses thereto. These common questions inciude, without limitation, the
following:

a. Whether Black/African Americans were denied the same promotions,
transfers and/or salary increases as similarly-situated non-Black/African American retail
banking employees during the limitations period because of their race;

b. Whether retail banking employees were subject to adverse employment
actions, including but not limited to, denied promotions, transfers, salary increases and/or
ultimately terminated after engaging in protected activity during the limitations period.

c. Whether Wells Fargo has given decision-making authority in the
above-described personnel matters to district managers who exercise uncontrolied,
unsupervised discretion that provides a ready means for discrimination, and whether that
authority is used to discriminate in decision-making;

d. Whether there is a pattern or class-wide practice in Wells Fargo’s
above-described decision-making in personnel matters of intentional race discrimination

against Black/African-American retail banking employees;

10
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e. Whether statistical analyses of the compensation of Black/African
Americans in retail banking positions show disparate treatment;

f. Whether the above-described policies and practices of Wells Fargo’s
retail banking division results in disparate treatment of Black/African Americans; and if so,
whether they are job-related and consistent with business necessity;

g. What relief is appropriate to remedy the claims of the plaintiff and the
class resulting from Wells Fargo’s above-described discriminatory employment practices
pursuant to Title VII and the PHRA;

f. The appropriate standards for grant of injunctive relief, both equitable
and in the form of damages, to remedy Wells Fargo’s above-described discriminatory
employment practices;

g. Whether, as a result of Wells Fargo’s above-described discriminatory
practices, plaintiff and the class suffered lost wages and other monetary damages;

h, Whether Wells Fargo’s above-described discriminatory actions are
“intentional” within the meaning of authorities applying Section 1981 and 42 U.S.C. §1981a
(a)(1); and

i Whether Wells Fargo acted with malice or reckless indifference by
the above-described discrimination against plaintiff and the class in the face of a perceived
risk that its actions would violate their rights such that an award of punitive damages to the
class is appropriate; and, if so, how such award should be determined and distributed to
members of the class.

50.  Rule 23(a)(3) -- Typicality. The claims of the named plaintiff, who is a

representative of the class, are typical of the claims of the class. The named plaintiff has

11
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been personally affected and discriminated against by the same practices that plaintiff
alleges in this complaint have harmed the class as a whole and other class members
individually.

51.  Rule 23(a)(4) -- Adequacy. The named plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent
the interests of the ¢lass. There is no conflict between the named plaintiff and other
members of the class with respect to this action or the claims for relief set forth in this
complaint. The attomeys for the plaintiff are experienced and competent in representation of
classes in employment discrimination actions, and they have and will devote adequate staff
and other resources to the case.

52.  Rule 23(b)(2) -- Case Maintainable Under this Rule. This action is properly
maintained as a class action pursuant to subsection (b)(2) of Rule 23 in that the defendant
has acted or refused to act on grounds which are generally applicable to the class, in
particular race, thereby making appropriate injunctive relief and corresponding declaratory
relief with respect to the class.

53.  Rule 23(b)(3) -- Case Maintainable Under this Rule. This action is also properly
maintained as a class action pursuant to subsection (b)(3) of Rule 23, particularly with
respect to the claims of class members for damages. With respect to those claims, questions
of law and fact common to the members of the class predominate over questions affecting
only individual class members; and a class action is superior to other available methods for
the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy. Individual class and members have
minimal interest in individually maintaining or controlling separate actions in this case; no
other litigation has been commenced asserting the interests and claims advanced in this case;

interests of fairness, efficiency, and consistency of outcome will be served by concentrating
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the litigation of the class members’ claims in this particular forum and action; this case will
be manageable as a class action, and far inore easily manageable than the multiplicity of
individual actions in different jurisdictions that would result if this case is not permitted to
proceed as a class action.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION -- VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. §1981 (ON BEHALF OF
BLACK/AFRICAN AMERICAN PLAINTIFFS AND MEMBERS OF THE CLASS)

54. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges and incorporate by this reference the

allegations set forth in paragraph 1 through 53, inclusive, as though fully set forth herein.
55. Defendant’s discrimination against Frank Hightower and the members of the
class, is in violation of the rights of the plaintiff and the class afforded them by the Civil
Rights Act of 1866, 42 U.S.C. §1981, as amended by the Civil Rights Act of 1991.

56. By the conduct described above, defendant Wells Fargo utentionally deprived the
above-named Black/African American members of the class of the same rights as are
enjoyed by white citizens to the creation, performance, enjoyment, and all benefits and
privileges, of their contractual employment relationship with Wells Fargo, in violation of 42
U.S.C. §1981.

57. As a result of defendant Wells Fargo’s discrimination in violation of Section 1981,
the African American plaintiff and imembers of the class have been denied employment
opportunities providing substantial compensation and benefits, thereby entitling them to
injunctive and equitable monetary relief; and have suffered anguish, humiliation, distress,
inconvenience and loss of enjoyment of life because of Wells Fargo’s actions, thereby
entitling them to compensatory damages.

58.  Inits discriminatory actions as alleged above, Wells Fargo has acted with malice or

reckless indifference to the rights of the Black/African-American plaintiff and class
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meinbers, thereby entitling them to an award of punitive damages.
59.  To remedy the violations of the rights of plaintiff and the class secured by Section
1981, plaintiff request that the Court award them the relief prayed for below.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION -- VIOLATION OF TITLE VII (ON BEHALF OF
PLAINTIFF AND MEMBERS OF THE CLASS)

60.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein the allegations of paragraphs
1 through 59, inclusive, as set forth above.

61.  Plaintiff and members of the class are employees and members of a protected class
within the meaning of Title VII i.e. Black/African-American.

62.  Defendant is an employer within the meaning of Title VII.

63.  Defendant’s discrimination against all of the plaintiff and members of the class is in
violation of the rights secured to plaintiffs and the class by Title VII of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964, 42 U.5.C. §§2000e et seq., as amended by the Civil Rights Act of 1991.

64. By the conduct described above, defendant intentionally violated the rights of
plaintiff and members of the ¢lass under Title VII.

65.  Plaintiff and members of the class were qualified within the meaning of the Title VII
but suffered disparate treatment as a result of Defendant’s conduct which are neither job-
related nor consistent with business necessity, and therefore violates the rights of plaintiff
and members of the class under Title VII.

66.  In regards to retaliation, Plaintiff and members of the class have suffered adverse
employment actions as a result of engaging in protected activity as defined within Title VIL.
67.  Plaintiff and members of the class have demonstrated a causal connection between
the protected activity and the resulting adverse employment action.

68.  As aresult of Defendant’s violation of Title VII, the plaintiff and members of the

14
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class are entitled to equitable and injunctive relief, including “rightful place” and “make
whole” remedies and equitable monetary relief, to remedy and compensate for the effects of
defendant’s unlawful actions.

69.  Asaresult of the defendant’s intentional violation of Title VII, the plaintiff and
members of the class have suffered anguish, humiliation, distress, inconvenience and loss of
enjoyment of life, thereby entitling them to compensatory damages.

70.  Inits discriminatory actions as alleged above, Wells Fargo has acted with malice or
reckless indifference to the rights of the above-named African American plaintiff ﬁnd class
members, thereby entitling them to an award of punitive damages.

71.  To remedy the violation of the rights of the plaintiff and the class secured by Title
VI, the plaintiff on his behalf and on behalf of the class, request that the Court award them
the relief prayed for below.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION -- VIOLATION OF THE PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN
RELATIONS ACT (PHRA) (ON BEHALF OF PLAINTIFF AND MEMBERS OF THE
CLASS)

72.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein the allegations of
paragraphs 1 through 71, inclusive, as set forth above.

73.  Plaintiff and members of the class are employees and members of a protected class
within the meaning of PHRA, i.e. Black/African-American.

74.  Defendant is an employer within the meaning of the PHRA.

75.  Defendant’s discrimination against the plaintiff and members of the class is in
violation of the rights secured to plaintiff and the class by the Pennsylvania Human

Relations Act, 43 P.S. § 951, et seq.

76. By the conduct described above, defendant intentionally violated the rights of
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plaintiff and members of the class under the PHRA.

77. By the conduct described above, defendant intentionally violated the rights of
plaintiff and members of the class that are residents of Pennsylvania under the PHRA.

78.  Plaintiff and members of the class were qualified within the meaning of the
aforementioned statute but suffered disparate treatment as a result of Defendant’s conduct
which are neither job-related nor consistent with business necessity, and therefore violates
the rights of plaimtiff and members of the class under the aforementioned statute.

79. In regards to retaliation, Plaintiff and members of the cléss have suffered adverse
employment actions as a result of engaging in protected activity as defined within the
aforementioned statute.

80.  Plaintiff and members of the class have demonstrated a causal connection between
the protected activity and the resulting adverse employment action.

81.  Asaresult of Defendant’s violation of the PHRA, the plaintiff and members of the
class are entitled to equitable and injunctive relief, including “rightful place” and “make
whole” remedies and equitable monetary relief, to remedy and compensate for the effects of
defendant’s unlawful actions.

82.  Asaresult of the defendant’s intentional violation of the PHRA, the plaintiff and
members of the class have suffered anguish, humiliation, distress, inconvenience and loss of
enjoyment of life, thereby entitling them to compensatory damages.

83.  Inits discriminatory actions as alleged above, Wells Fargo has acted with malice or
reckless indifference to the rights of the above-named plaintiff and class members, thereby
entitling them to an award of punitive damages.

84.  To remedy the violation of the rights of the plaintiff and the class secured by the
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PHRA, plaintiff on his behalf and on behalf of the class, request that the Court award them
the relief prayed for below.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays that the Court grant relief on their First, Second

and Third Causes of Action as specified below.

85.  Plaintiff prays that the Court assign the case for hearing(s) at the earliest practicable
date(s) and cause the case to be in every way expedited, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §2000e-
5(H(5).

86.  Plaintiff prays that the Court ceriify a class defined as:

a. Black/African-American retail banking employees who have been
subjected to Wells Fargo’s discriminatory practices with regard to promotion opportunities.
As used in this paragraph, “promotion” mcludes transfer to another position that would
provide additional wages, benefits, better working conditions, or an opportunity for career
development, additional training, or experience that might reasonably lead to future
advancement;

b. All Wells Fargo retail banking employees who suffered adverse
employment actions, as defined by Title VII and the PHRA, after engaging in protected
activity during the limitations period, i.e. reporting activity to human resources or the
ethics line they reasonably believed to be illegal.

c. Black/African-American retail banking employees who during the
limitations period have been subjected to Wells Fargo’s discriminatory compensation
practices.

73.  Plaintiff further prays that the Court certify the named plaintiff and their attorneys as
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representatives of this class, pursuant to Rule 23(b)(2) and 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure.

74.  Plaintiff prays that the Court issue a declaratory judgment against defendant Wells
Fargo finding that Wells Fargo’s retail banking division has violated the rights of plaintiff
and the class under Section 1981, Title VII, and the PHRA, by denying and depriving
plaintiff and the class of equal employment opportunities on the basis of race and retaliation
as alleged in this complaint are violations of Section 1981, Title VII and the PHRA,

75.  Plaintiff prays that the Court issue a preliminary and permanent injunction pursuant
to §1981, Title VII and the PHRA, enjoining defendant Wells Fargo, its officers, agents,
employees, and all others acting for or succeeding Wells Fargo, from engaging in the
discriminatory employment practices alleged in this complaint that discriminate againsi
plaintiff and the class in violation of Section 1981, Title VII, or the PHRA, on the basis of
race and retaliation.

76.  Plaintiff prays that the Court iésue a declaratory judgment against defendant Wells
Fargo finding that Wells Fargo’s retail banking division has violated the rights of plaintiff
and the class under Section 1981, Title VII, and the PHRA, by denying and depriving
plaintiff, the class of equal employment opportunities on the basis of race and retaliation, as
alleged in this complaint; and that the violations of Section 1981, Title VII, and the PHRA.
77.  Plaintiff prays that the Court issue a preliminary and permanent injunction pursuant
to §1981, Title VII and the PHRA enjoining defendant Wells Fargo, its officers, agents,
employees, and all others acting for or succeeding Wells Fargo, from engaging in the
discriminatory employment practices alleged in this complaint that discriminate against

plaintiff or the class, in violation of Section 1981, Title VII, or the PHRA on the basis of
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race or retali;ltion.

78.  Plaintiff prays that the Court enter a preliminary and permanent injunction ordering
and requiring that defendant Wells Fargo formulate, institute, adopt and maintain policies
and practices which will provide equal employment opportunities to plaintiff and which will
to the extent practicable, remedy the continuing effects of past discrimination against
plaintiff and the class and restore them to the employment status and position they would
have held and enjoyed but for the unlawful discrimmation complained of herein.

79. Plaintiffs pray that the Court award monetary relief as follows:

a. On the First Cause of Action, order defendant to pay equitable monetary
relief, compensatory and punitive damages to plaintiff and members of the class on whose
behalf claims are asserted under Section 1981 in that Cause of Action, in an amount to be
proved at trial;

b. On the Second and Third Causes of Action, order defendant to pay
equitable monetary relief, compensatory and punitive damages within the limits of 42
U.S.C. §1981a(a)(1) and the PHRA to plaintiff and members of the class on the claims
asserted under both statutes in that Cause of Action, in an amnount to be proved at trial;

79.  Plaintiff prays that the Court award him his costs, expenses and attomey’s fees,
payable by defendant Wells Fargo, as follows:

a. By determining that plaintiffs are prevailing parties on the First, Second
and Third Causes of Action, and thereupon awarding plaintiff his reasonable costs,
expenses, and attorney’s fees incurred in bringing this action, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1988
on the First and Second Causes of Action, §1988 and 42 U.S.C. §2000e-5(k) and 43 P.S.

§962(c.2) on the Third Cause of Action.
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81.  Plaintiff prays that the Court order Wells Fargo to pay pre- and post-judgment
interest in all monetary amounts awarded in this action, as provided by law.

82.  Plaintiff prays that the Court retain jurisdiction of this case for a sufficient period of
time to assure that defendant Wells Fargo has fully complied with the preliminary and
permanent injunctions requested herein and has remedied to the greatest extent practicable
the discriminatory policies and practices complained of herein, and that Wells Fargo is
operating in full compliance with the requirements of §1981, Title VII, and the PHRA with
regard to its employment policies and practices.

83.  Plaintiff prays that the Court award such other and further relief as this Court deems

equitable and just.

JURY DEMAND
Plaintiff hereby demand a trial by jury as to all issues so triable.
Respectfully submitted,

McCAIN LAW, P.C.

Z4Kia E. Moore, Esquire

J. Edward McCain, III Esquire
1515 Market Street, Suite 1200
Philadelphia, PA 19102
215-236-1086
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1171772016 11:50 FAX 2154402608 EEOC-Philadelphia 0ffice #0001/0008

EEOC Form 5 {14703}

CHARGE OF DfSC RIMINATION Charge Presented To; Agengylies) Charge No(s):
This form |5 afectad by the Privacy Act of 1974, See enclosad Pri Adl
Stalamant snd Zmaf !nfonﬁyatlon tafore complefing Igfs fom:.a @ D FEPA .
EECC 530-2017-00390
Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission and EEOC
- Slate or Jocal Agsncy, if any
Name {ndicate Mr, Ms., Mrs,) Home Phone gnch Ares Code) Date of Birth
Frank Hightower 1988
Strest Addrssa City, Stata and ZIP Cods

6700 Harbison Ave,, Philadeiphia, PA 19149

Named is the Employer, Lebor Organization, Employment Agency, Appranticeship Commitisa, or State or l.ocal Government Agancy That | Bellsve
Oiscriminated Against Me or Qthers. (i more than fwo, fist under PARTICULARS below.)

Nemz No, Enwlwm Mambuora Fhona Na. fiaciuda Arez Coda)
WELLS FARGO 500 or More
Strost Address Chly, Stata and ZIP Cods

3400 Chichester Ave, Boothwyn, PA 19061

DISCRIMINATION BASED ON (Check sppropriate bax(as).] DATELS) DISORIMINATION TODK FLACE
) Eariest Latest
[X]mwce [ Jeoor [ Jsex [ ] revaon [ ] wanonacomiam 07-01-2013 09.02-2016
RETALIATION AGE DIZABILITY D GENETIC INFORMATION
D DTHER {Spacify} D CONTINUING ACTION

THE PARTICULARS ARE (If avoffional pager is neaded, sHach extra shoets)):
I was hired by Respondent on or about September 2, 2012 as a “Personal Banker.” On or about
September 2, 2016 | was terminated with the job titie of "Stors Manager."

©n or about July 1 2013 | informed Human Resources that Raymond Disendro (white), District
Manager, was treating a whita employee more favorably {in the form of a monstary raise} than
similarly situated Biack/Aftican-American employesa who were more qualified and performing better.
This began a series of retaliatory acte by Respondent, specifically Mr. Disandro, in form of continued
harassment, static salary, despite excelient performancs, approximately six (8) write-ups, and other
unsubstantiated attempts at discipline and corrective action. On or about sometime in September of
2016, during a store manager's mesting, Mark Bacon, {white) made the commaent, "I'd like to stand
with the minoritias.” No investigation or attempt at corractive action was taken by Mr. Disandro, and
roughly a month iater Mr. Bacon made another comment inappropriate comment, at which time |
contacted Human Resources to ask why the initial comment was not iooked into. On or about
sometime in November 2015, during a break, | waa on a phone cail with Tammarah Rhoda, Human
Resources, attempting to complain about Mr. Disandro’s discriminatory and retaliatory actions,
When | returned to Respondent after the phone call Mr. Disandro attempted to take my keys and
terminate me, | called Rhoda and informed her of what was happening. Mr. Disandro still took my
keys and informed mo that { was terminated. | was reinstated after a mesting with Area President,
Robin Chol, On or about sometime in March of 2016 | was approved for a promotion and transferred

| want thls chargs filed with koth the EEOC ang the Siats or local Agsngy, i any. | NOTARY - Whan nacessary for Sfafe snd Loce! Agency Requiremenis
will advisa the agencies if | changs my address or phone numbser and | will ] A
cooperate fully with them in the proceseing of my chiarge in accordance with thalt ik S| ,sici_w'i _
procedutes. | swear or affiim that | have m‘lﬁ}%hﬁamﬁd that it {a {rue to
I declare under penaity of perjury that the above 18 true and comect. the best of my knowletige, aflan and belief,

SIGNATURE OF GGMPLAINE ;

T Y LI AON
.’_,M"

SUBSCRIDED AND SWDRN To@sF_.gn,E\q@-@ o

Nov 17, 2018 {month, day, yean
Date Charging Parly Skgnaturs
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11/17/2016 11:51 FAX 2154402606 EEOC-Philadelphia Offlice R10002,0006

EEQGC Ferm & (11708}

CHARGE OF DISCRIMINATION Charge Presented To:  Agency(ies) Gharge No(e):
This form Is affected by the Privecy Act of 1674. Sea enclesed Privacy Act D FEPA
Statement and othes informsation befors complsting is form.
[x] egoc 530-2017-00390
Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission and EEOC

State or foal Agency, i any

Respondent's Atlanta location. On or about the end of April | began worklng In Respondent's Atlanta
location. On or ahout somsetime in August | was ssrved with a corrective action/final warning for
workplace profassionalism, after | attempting to place a banker under corrective action, | was
informed that | needad to take aome trainings, work on my professlonalism, and not to place any
employees under corrective action or hire. | was then informed afterward by District Manager,
Gregory Galnow, to Interview internally for a "Personal Banker." | informed Jenny Kent, Human
Resources, about this, and other conflicting issues listed on my Finat Warning, such as being
responsible for traininga | would be unahle to register for untll 2017, even though the trainings were
listed to be completed in thirty (30) daye. On or about September 2, 2016 Gainow informed me that i
was terminated for faillng to complete the corrective actions listed on my final warning.

i allege | have been dlscriminated against on the basls of my race (Black/African-American) 1 also
allege that other Blacks/African-Americans were treated unfavorably and denied promotional and
salary advancement, | also allege | have been retallated against in violation of Title VI! of the Civil

Rights Act of 1964, as amended.

| want this charge filed with both the EEOC and the Stats or loal Agsney, fany. | | NOTARY - Whan necessary for State and Local Agancy Requirements

Wil pdvise the agencles it changs my address of phone number and | wi
cooparala fully with them in the precassing of my chargs in accordancs with thalr

procedures, t swear of affim that | havs read the above cheme and that it is true to
| dectars under penalty of perjury thet the above la trua snd correct. the bast of my knowledgse, information and balief.
SIGNATURE OF CORPLAINANT

$UBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS DATE
{month, day, yaar)

I

Nov 17, 2018 ) o
[l rdtlng Pany Sionsture

Date




Case 2:17-cv-04119-GAM Document 1 Filed 09/14/17 Page 28 of 29

EEOC Form 161-8 (11H6) U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION
NOTICE OF RIGHT TO SUE (/SSUED ON REQUEST)
To: Frank Hightower From: Philadelphia District Office
6700 Harbison Ave, 801 Market Street
Unit B3 Suite 1300
Philadelphia, PA 19149 Philadelphia, PA 19107

On behalf of person(s} aggrieved whose idenfity is
CONFIDENTIAL {29 CFR §1601.7(a))

EEQC Charge No. EEQOC Representative Telephone No.
Legal Unit,
530-2017-00390 Legat Technician (215) 440-2828

{See also the additional information enclosed with this form.)

NOTICE TC THE PERSON AGGRIEVED:

Title VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans with Disabilities Act {(ADA), or the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination
Act {GINA): This is your Notice of Right to Sue, issued under Title VI, ihe ADA or GINA based on ihe above-numbered charge. It has

been issued at your request. Your lawsuit under Title Vil, the ADA or GINA must be filed in a federal or state court WITHIN 80 DAYS
of your receipt of this notice; or your right to sue based on this charge will be lost. (The time Emit for fiting suit based on a claim under

state law may be different.)

More than 180 days have passed since the filing of this charge.

Less than 180 days have passed since the filing of this charge, but { have determined that it is unlikely that the EEQC will
be able to complele its administrative processing within 180 days from the fling of this charge.

The EEOC is terminating ifs processing of this charge.

The EEQC will continue to process this charge.
Age Discrimination in Employment Act {ADEA): You may sue under the ADEA at any time from 60 days after the charge was fited until
90 days after you receive notice that we have completed aclion on the charge. In this regard, the paragraph marked below applies to
your case:

The EEQC is closing your case. Therefore, your lawsuit under the ADEA must be filed in federal or state court WITHIN
80 DAYS of your receipt of this Notice. Otherwise, your right to sue based on the above-numbered charge will be lost.

':, The EEQC is continuing its handling of your ADEA case. However, if 60 days have passed since the filing of the charge,
you may file suit in federal or state court under the ADEA at this time.

Equal Pay Act (EPA); You aiready have the right to sue under the EPA (filing an EEOC charge is not required.) EPA suits must be brought

in federal or state court within 2 vears (3 years for willful violations) of the alleged EPA underpayment. This means that backpay due for
any viclations that occurred maore than 2 vears {3 vears) before you file suit may not be collectible.

If you fite suit, based on this charge, please send a copy of your court complaint to this office.
On behalf of the Commission

/é/%\/#//’s% Wiz F

Enclosures(s) Spencer H. Lewis, Jr., {Date Mailed)
District Director

WELLS FARGO
Brittni G, Robinson (For Respondent)
Zakia E. Moore, Esq. {For Charging Party}
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VERIFICATION

1, Frank Hightower, plaintiff i this action, verify that the statements made in this
class action complaint are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information,
and belief. 1 understand that false statements herein are made subject to the penalties
of 18 PA. C.S.A. § 4904 relating to unsworn falsificatign-te-4i e

Date: 4[(/17
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